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          1  COMMITTEE ON VETERANS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Good

          3  afternoon, everyone. I'm Council Member Monserrate,

          4  Chair of the Veterans Committee here at the City

          5  Council. I'd like to welcome everyone here to the

          6  hearing. Before I go any further, I'm going to ask

          7  everyone to join me in a moment of silence for all

          8  those that we have lost overseas and in particular

          9  for the MIAs. Right now there is two MIAs, one of

         10  which lives in my district, Alex Duran (phonetic)

         11  who has been missing since about May 12. A moment of

         12  silence, please.

         13                 (Moment of silence observed.)

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you

         15  very much, and God bless our troops.

         16                 Today's hearing, the Committee will

         17  be considering proposed Intro Number 508-A, a local

         18  law which would amend the New York City Charter to

         19  require the Director of the Mayor's Office of

         20  Veterans' Affairs to send annual written notice to

         21  all our veterans within New York City informing them

         22  of Federal, State and City benefits to which

         23  veterans and their families are entitled. Veterans

         24  returning from active duty often face various

         25  problems during their transition to civilian life.
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          2  These problems can range from lingering effects of

          3  post- traumatic stress disorder, substance abuse,

          4  issues of housing and guidance with regards to

          5  educational employment and housing options available

          6  to them.

          7                 Veterans are eligible for a wide

          8  range of programs and services provided by the

          9  federal Department of Veterans' Affairs as well as

         10  some State benefits and even one or two City

         11  benefits. But as we know, bureaucrat maze of

         12  paperwork and red tape can often be discouraging

         13  under the best of circumstances, let alone to a

         14  veteran who has returned from serving his or her

         15  country in time of war; which we are currently now,

         16  unfortunately.

         17                 In previous hearings, we have heard

         18  from many veterans advocacy groups that veterans are

         19  in fact facing difficulties in existing services

         20  that they are entitled too. New York City is home to

         21  an estimated 300,000 veterans and with the current

         22  conflicts in Iraq and Afghanistan and abroad

         23  continuing, there will be many more to come. There

         24  needs to be an assurance and commitment from us. We

         25  need to be able to do more for them as a City and to
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          2  ensure that they access services that they need.

          3                 Today, we will have our first hearing

          4  to consider proposed Intro 508-A. As mentioned

          5  earlier, this bill would call upon the Mayor's

          6  Office of Veterans' Affairs to send an annual

          7  written notice to New York City veterans informing

          8  them of Federal, State and City benefits to which

          9  veterans and their families are entitled. It would

         10  also require MOVA in particular to make this

         11  information available via its website and provide

         12  for a mechanism on its website through which

         13  veterans and their families can request to receive

         14  this notice.

         15                 At this time, I would like to offer

         16  the opportunity for the sponsor of the bill, I am a

         17  co- sponsor of the bill which clearly tells you

         18  where I am, but I would like to give the opportunity

         19  to the prime sponsor of this bill to share with us

         20  some remarks. Council Member Vinny Gentile.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chairman. First and foremost, I would like to

         23  thank Council Member Hiram Monserrate, the Chair of

         24  our Veterans Committee for his leadership on this

         25  issue and for his co- sponsorship of this bill. It
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          2  is a just reflection of how this Committee is

          3  consistently addressed the growing needs of veterans

          4  and the difficulties they have in obtaining benefits

          5  and services.

          6                 We are here today as Council Member

          7  Monserrate said to discuss Intro 508, which was

          8  introduced back in February of this year. My

          9  proposal is an amendment to the New York City

         10  Charter that would require the Mayor's Office of

         11  Veterans' Affairs (MOVA), to send annual written

         12  notice to all veterans within New York City,

         13  informing them of Federal, State and City benefits

         14  to which they and their families are entitled.

         15                 In addition, the amendment to the

         16  bill would require MOVA's website to also contain

         17  this information and contain the registration

         18  mechanism so that a continuing effort may be made

         19  available to enroll new veterans such as our troops

         20  returning home from operation and during Freedom and

         21  operation Iraq Freedom as well as veterans

         22  previously returning that we have not yet reached.

         23                 Part of the frustration and the

         24  problems that are associated with veterans benefits

         25  stem from the myriad of programs that are available
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          2  to them. All three levels of government; City, State

          3  and Federal offer subsidies and reduction programs.

          4  Unfortunately, these aid programs are often complex

          5  and bogged down by bureaucracy. It is for these

          6  reasons why this bill would serve to streamline the

          7  process and ensure that no veterans are unaware of

          8  the benefits which they may be entitled and how to

          9  apply for them.

         10                 I'm sure that all of you are familiar

         11  with the term, red tape. That term, red tape, has

         12  pointed roots that have been traced back to the

         13  American Civil War. Veterans upon completion of

         14  their service had to track to Washington, D.C.,

         15  notwithstanding their state of origin to collect any

         16  benefits or salaries that they were due. Upon

         17  arriving in, D.C., they had to go to the proper

         18  location and meet with a compensation

         19  representative. In an age before computerization,

         20  veterans were necessarily subjected to long waits as

         21  the representatives combed through the records

         22  individually. These records were bound in red tape

         23  explaining the origin of the term.

         24                 In 2007, nearly 150 years later, I

         25  intend with this legislation to ensure that our
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          2  City's veterans are not subjected to the same

          3  odyssey. This introduction is aimed at minimizing

          4  the bureaucracy and cutting the red tape that is

          5  often involved in gaining the proper knowledge of

          6  benefits and services available. The concept is

          7  straight forward and simple. Under this plan, the

          8  Mayor's Office of Veterans' Affairs would compile

          9  specific government assistant programs throughout

         10  all levels of government specifically in pertaining

         11  to veterans and their families and send written

         12  correspondence explaining how to apply and access

         13  these particular benefits.

         14                 The recent article in Cranes, New

         15  York, recounted the hard tale of a City veteran

         16  reintegrating into society after serving in Iraq.

         17  The individual was thrown back into society with

         18  little care or regard ignoring obvious signs and

         19  symptoms of post- traumatic stress disorder as well

         20  as extreme financial hardship. His small business

         21  failed and the government was not there for the

         22  veteran when he needed their help. Yet, the same

         23  person was that military man that was there when

         24  Uncle Sam called him.

         25                 This legislation would ease
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          2  unnecessarily burdens imposed on our veterans given

          3  the sacrifice that they have made for our City,

          4  State and country. It is our responsibility in

          5  government to make their lives and the lives of

          6  their families more livable; whether by eliminating

          7  the red tape or by saving their family hundreds or

          8  even thousands of dollars through enrollment in the

          9  government benefit program. If a government benefit

         10  exists, whether it be State, Local or Federal,

         11  veterans should have a way to know about it and a

         12  way to access those benefits.

         13                 New York City is home to more than

         14  400,000 veterans. Cutting this red tape and sending

         15  direct correspondence is but a small token of

         16  appreciation we can show for their selfless

         17  contribution to our free and democratic society.

         18  Again, I would like to thank this Committee for

         19  taking up this Intro at the hearing today and I look

         20  forward to additional testimony. Thank you, Mr.

         21  Chairman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you,

         23  Council Member Gentile. We are going to go right

         24  ahead and invite to the panel, Mr. David Curcio,

         25  Assistant Director of the Mayor's Office of
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          2  Veterans' Affairs. Before you begin, sir, I'm going

          3  to indulge Council Member Avella, who wants to also

          4  making an opening statement.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Chairman. Not so much that I want to make an opening

          7  statement is I noticed yesterday when I got notice

          8  of the hearing that my name wasn't on the bill as a

          9  sponsor. I don't know why. I could have sworn I

         10  submitted it. But I had my office submit again.

         11  Although it is not on here, I am happy to be a

         12  sponsor of the legislation.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you. We

         14  will make sure that it happens. Please proceed.

         15  Before you proceed, let me put you on the spot a

         16  little bit. At previous hearings, Clarice Joynes,

         17  who is the Director acknowledged and stated to this

         18  Committee that she would be forwarding to us the

         19  minutes of the last Mayor's Veterans Advisory Board.

         20  We have too date not received those minutes. We have

         21  not received a listing of who is currently on them

         22  as she understands them. My office has corresponded

         23  to her on this issue and we have not received that.

         24  If someone is going to testify to this Committee and

         25  on the record state that they are going to be
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          2  sending us documentation that we requested, which is

          3  public information, they should do so.

          4                 I would like you to relay that and

          5  again I want to give you the phone number to my

          6  district office which is 718- 205- 3881. Please have

          7  someone from your office call us today. They can fax

          8  the minutes and they can fax us the information that

          9  was promised to us about two hearings ago. Thank you

         10  and you can go ahead and proceed.

         11                 MR. CURCIO: Good afternoon, Chairman

         12  Monserrate and members of the Committee and Council.

         13  My name is David Mario Curcio and I serve as

         14  Assistant Director and Special Counsel of the

         15  Mayor's Office of Veterans' Affairs. For nearly 20

         16  years, the mission of the Mayor's Office of

         17  Veterans' Affairs has remained the same; to offer

         18  information and to make referrals for veterans and

         19  members of the military who may require the

         20  assistance of the United States Department of

         21  Veterans' Affairs the New York State Division of

         22  Veterans' Affairs, the Department of Defense, New

         23  York City Agencies and relevant service providers

         24  throughout New York City. This has been and

         25  continues to be accomplished through numerous
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          2  channels of outreach.

          3                 The Mayor's Office of Veterans'

          4  Affairs maintains a highly comprehensive website

          5  that can be accessed anytime through www.nyc.gov.

          6  This resource contains detailed information about

          7  benefits offered by Federal, State, and City

          8  government and instructions on how to access them,

          9  all available from the main menu on the left- hand

         10  side of the page. In addition to general

         11  information, there are subcategories for information

         12  on housing, employment and education benefits, which

         13  can also by easily accessed from the benefits menu.

         14                 Another excellent web- based resource

         15  is Access NYC, an on- line service through which any

         16  City resident can screen themselves and their family

         17  for more than 20 Federal, State, and City health and

         18  human service benefit programs in seven languages.

         19  Visitors to this site can also learn how to apply,

         20  search for office locations and print partially

         21  complete applications for some of the programs.

         22  Among these programs is the Veterans Property Tax

         23  Exemption offered by the City of New York's

         24  Department of Finance to veteran homeowners. In the

         25  upcoming year, we plan to make Access NYC fully
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          2  operative for veterans and all benefits that may be

          3  available to them through City agencies. In addition

          4  to our website, any veteran who calls 311 with a

          5  question about veterans benefits is immediately

          6  transferred to the Mayor's Office of Veterans'

          7  Affairs for further assistance.

          8                 The proposed Intro 508- A calls upon

          9  the Mayor's Office of Veterans' Affairs to send

         10  annual written notice to all veterans living within

         11  the City of New York to inform them of Federal,

         12  State and City benefits to which they and their

         13  family may be eligible. The objective of this

         14  measure is already accomplished through the various

         15  informational channels and resources I have just

         16  mentioned. In addition, to send annual written

         17  notice to all veterans living within the City of New

         18  York is impractical for several reasons.

         19                 First and foremost, there is no

         20  centralized database of New York City veterans.

         21  Those who identify themselves as veterans do so

         22  largely through self- reporting models, such as the

         23  US Census, the US Department of Veterans Affairs,

         24  New York Harbor Healthcare System (Manhattan and

         25  Brooklyn campuses) and the James J. Peters VA
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          2  Hospital in the Bronx. These sources cannot provide

          3  such a listing because not all veterans apply for

          4  benefits and services or report themselves as

          5  veterans to the census. Similarly, to request any

          6  such information from the VA hospitals would raise

          7  an issue of healthcare privacy concerns.

          8                 The US Department of Veterans'

          9  Affairs estimates that there are about 258,000

         10  living veterans in the five boroughs of New York

         11  City. Again, this is a rough estimate based on

         12  statistical projections made from the 2000 Census

         13  which is a self- reporting model. Assuming the

         14  number is accurate, taking into account production

         15  and mailing costs, such an endeavor would easily

         16  cost well over $100,000 to annually accomplish.

         17                 The Mayor's Office of Veterans'

         18  Affairs remains committed to its mission as a

         19  liaison agency to the military and veterans

         20  community. We are constantly updating our website

         21  with the most up-to-date information on veterans'

         22  benefits and events. We also continue to produce a

         23  newsletter that is distributed to the more than 400

         24  chapters of veterans organizations located

         25  throughout the five boroughs. In addition, anyone
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          2  who either visits our website or contacts our

          3  office, can request to be added to our mailing list

          4  in order to receive a copy of our newsletter, either

          5  electronically or by way of traditional mail.

          6                 We are also currently in the process

          7  of upgrading Veterans Memorial Hall, a place where

          8  veterans can come to interact with representatives

          9  from the more 20 veterans service organizations

         10  housed at the Hall, anchored by the Mayor's Office

         11  of Veterans' Affairs. Mayor Bloomberg recently

         12  announced during his Mayoral welcome to our sea

         13  services during Fleet Week that Veterans Memorial

         14  Hall will soon be welcoming Veterans of Modern

         15  Warfare, an organization representing veterans from

         16  the current war, as its newest tenant. The Mayor's

         17  Office of Veterans' Affairs will continue to serve

         18  the military and veteran community as it has done

         19  for the past two decades. If there are any

         20  questions, I will try to answer.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Yes, we have

         22  some questions. My first question is, how much time

         23  do you have? How much time do you have? Do you have

         24  an hour, a half an hour?

         25                 MR. CURCIO: How much time do you
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          2  need?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Well, I'd

          4  like to invite some of the veterans to make some

          5  remarks and I'd like for you to be here for that. I

          6  wanted to know how much you have.

          7                 MR. CURCIO: I will try to stay here

          8  for a little bit and then I do have another

          9  appointment later on this afternoon.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: All right.

         11  The first question I have is does MOVA's website

         12  currently provide any explanation of the benefits

         13  that the veterans are entitled too?

         14                 MR. CURCIO: Yes. There is a benefits

         15  menu on the left hand side of the page and it has

         16  subcategories. It describes the benefits generally.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: What is the

         18  website?

         19                 MR. CURCIO: The website is

         20  www.nyc.gov/veterans. You could also access it

         21  through the main www.nyc.gov site as well from the

         22  drop down of agencies.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay. You

         24  came up with this figure of $100,000. You are

         25  testifying that you estimate it would cost the City
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          2  about $100,000 a year to do this to implement this

          3  bill?

          4                 MR. CURCIO: Well, just based on the

          5  estimate of 258,000 veterans in the City of New

          6  York. If you just take into account production

          7  costs, mailing costs, 41 cents postage, that's about

          8  what you would be looking at.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: That's

         10  actually more than we are currently spending on your

         11  office, right?

         12                 MR. CURCIO: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: If we added

         14  this $100 to about the $90,000 that the City

         15  Administration is spending on your office that would

         16  make a grand total of $190,000 that we would be

         17  spending on our veterans as a City. Is that correct?

         18                 MR. CURCIO: Correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: You are

         20  talking about a best case scenario, the Mayor's

         21  Office is spending $90,000 on the office. If they

         22  spent a $100,000 on the mailing, it would be

         23  $190,000 out of a $55 billion budget.

         24                 MR. CURCIO: That's a budget that you

         25  guys and the Mayor agree on.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Right. I

          3  guess what I'm trying to outline here is that for

          4  you to testify about of a fee of $100,000 is being

          5  any type of impedient obstacle or any of the such,

          6  to deter the Administration from doing a basic

          7  outreach out to veterans is clearly in my opinion

          8  unacceptable as a statement. If we were talking

          9  about millions of dollars, then perhaps we can have

         10  a discussion. I'm calling for $5 million in services

         11  in our five boroughs. But this bill, according to

         12  your estimate, could be less. But according to your

         13  estimate, it would cost the City about $100,000.

         14                 MR. CURCIO: The more important point

         15  is that there is no accurate way to even identify

         16  these people which you have to accomplish first

         17  before you even got to the issue of financing.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: We can

         19  separate the two issues out. First, I hope you would

         20  agree with me that $100,000 is not a major item for

         21  the City of New York. Would you agree with that?

         22                 MR. CURCIO: It would represent a

         23  large portion of this office's budget.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: But it would

         25  be more than your budget --
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          2                 MR. CURCIO: It is money that could be

          3  spent in other ways.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: If we gave

          5  your office another $100,000, you can double your

          6  staff and do good things. Is your Administration

          7  prepared to do that?

          8                 MR. CURCIO: That's something you will

          9  have to negotiate with the Administration.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Right,

         11  exactly. Let's go on to a couple of other questions.

         12  I'm actually going to call Council Member Gentile. I

         13  know he might have some questions regarding the

         14  implementation of the bill. But before he asks his

         15  questions, I'm going to ask one more question. Now

         16  the State is going to be testifying shortly. I would

         17  imagine that the VA has a database of all the

         18  veterans and their last known addresses.

         19                 MR. CURCIO: That's not correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Why don't you

         21  educate me? Explain that to me. Who knows who these

         22  veterans are?

         23                 MR. CURCIO: In order to be in the VA

         24  database, you have to apply to the VA proactively

         25  for benefits and services. There are many veterans
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          2  residing in New York City that never interact with

          3  the VA.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: This is my

          5  question. I'm a veteran.

          6                 MR. CURCIO: Sure.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: When I was

          8  discharged, the VA knew my last address and about 15

          9  years ago I needed a copy of my DD214. I went to the

         10  VA and they helped me track it down. But they knew

         11  who I was because I was in a database. It was based

         12  on my social security number. I might be mistaken,

         13  but I would imagine the VA at the very least has the

         14  basic information and last known address.

         15                 MR. CURCIO: That's not correct as far

         16  as I know. You can ask the VA certainly.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay. We're

         18  going to invite him up in a moment and I'm going to

         19  allow my colleagues to ask any questions they have.

         20  Council Member Gentile.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chairman and Mr. Curcio, thank you for being

         23  here. You testified to several different sources

         24  that gives the information that you say is pertinent

         25  to veterans and their families in terms of benefits
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          2  and in terms of questions. It seems to me that a

          3  large part of what we are asking you to do is

          4  already prepped and ready to go. But your stance has

          5  been, well if they contact us we will give them the

          6  informational and point them to the information. Why

          7  is it that our policy, the City's policy that we

          8  take a proactive affirmative stance and do outreach

          9  rather than take the position, well if they reach

         10  out, we will respond. But if they don't reach out,

         11  then there is nothing we can do.

         12                 MR. CURCIO: Well, the information is

         13  put out there in many ways. The website is well

         14  promoted and advertised. Certainly, I would think

         15  that all City residents are familiar with 311 and

         16  nyc.gov which has been well promoted.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: But you have

         18  not connected. You have not connected. You can't

         19  tell me that you have connected veterans benefits to

         20  311, In people's minds, 311 if you have a pothole,

         21  if you have a light out, people understand, you call

         22  311 and get it done. But when it comes to veterans

         23  benefits, veterans services, post- traumatic stress

         24  treatment, that is not associated with 311 unless

         25  you make it associated with 311.
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          2                 MR. CURCIO: Prior to separation from

          3  the military, all members of the service are

          4  encouraged to register for their benefits with the

          5  VA and they actually go through an orientation where

          6  they are told about what's available and what's out

          7  there and what they should do. Now it is up to them

          8  individually to make choice whether or not to do

          9  that. You can't force everyone to make that

         10  decision.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Now are you

         12  saying, are they told, they are handed something

         13  with a list of programs and given that or are they

         14  just told verbally what's available to them?

         15                 MR. CURCIO: I can't speak for what

         16  each individual branch of the military service does,

         17  but I know they are told about the VA and how to go

         18  about applying for their benefits.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Since neither

         20  one of us are experts on that issue of what is told

         21  to them or what is given to them, I think it is

         22  incumbent upon us as a City given the measly cost

         23  we're talking about to be absolutely doubly sure

         24  that our veterans who serve this country and have

         25  served our City are made aware of the benefits that
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          2  are out there for them. I don't see why we can't

          3  make doubly sure that they know that and not by just

          4  saying if they contact us, we can tell them But that

          5  you affirmatively do something in terms of sending

          6  out a notice saying here are the websites, Access

          7  New York City or in case you have another question,

          8  call us or call 311 for any kind of veterans

          9  services or benefits. Why can't we do that? Why

         10  can't we send that out to veterans as an

         11  affirmative, proactive way of doing it rather than

         12  what you suggest that it is out there and if they

         13  find it, fine. If they don't find it, well, there is

         14  nothing we can do about it.

         15                 MR. CURCIO: Primarily, because there

         16  is no accurate way to identify them.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Now we had

         18  asked and you bring that up, we had asked that

         19  question to Director Joynes last time she testified

         20  here and I don't know if you were here at the time,

         21  but she indicated that MOVA would be able to file a

         22  Freedom Information request to obtain a complete

         23  list and other pertinent data veterans living in New

         24  York City from either the New York State Division of

         25  Veterans' Affairs or the United States Department of
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          2  Veterans' Affairs. At that point when she said that,

          3  we as a Committee formally requested that she go

          4  ahead and file the appropriate foil with those

          5  respective departments to obtain a compiled list.

          6  What is the status of that action that we have asked

          7  her to take or ask MOVA to take?

          8                 MR. CURCIO: I think the State

          9  Division of the VA could speak to the logistical

         10  problems that we involved in that. I can just say

         11  for example, the Department of Defense would have

         12  their records based upon whatever your home of

         13  record was when you enlisted at that time. People

         14  move around. There are certainly a lot of different

         15  variables that come into play. Again, accurate

         16  listing of all the veterans living in New York City

         17  doesn't seem practical.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: We may not

         19  get an accurate listing of 100 percent of correct

         20  addresses from everyone, but to fail to attempt to

         21  get 80, 75, 80 percent corrected address because we

         22  can't get 100 percent is really no reason for not

         23  trying. It really isn't. This is so laid out so

         24  plainly of what we should be doing and we're not

         25  doing it. Are you saying now that a foil, the
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          2  request that we've made to MOVA, that a foil be made

          3  either to the State Department of Veteran Affairs or

          4  the US Department of Veterans' Affairs has or has

          5  not been done?

          6                 MR. CURCIO: No such foil request has

          7  been made.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: No foil

          9  request has been made despite our discussions with

         10  the Director at the last hearing? And she said that

         11  MOVA would be able to do that. The testimony today

         12  is that that has not been?

         13                 MR. CURCIO: To my knowledge, no

         14  specific request like that has actually been made up

         15  to now.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Mr. Chairman,

         17  I think that is something we need to follow- up with

         18  the Director on given the fact that she agreed to do

         19  that last time she was here. If one of those other

         20  entities like Department of Veterans' Affairs,

         21  Department of Defense, if they made a foil request

         22  of MOVA to get names and addresses of New York City

         23  veterans, would you be able to comply?

         24                 MR. CURCIO: We don't maintain a

         25  database.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: You don't

          3  have a database? There is no database?

          4                 MR. CURCIO: No.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Now did you

          6  testify that you sent out a newsletter?

          7                 MR. CURCIO: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: What database

          9  do you use for the newsletter?

         10                 MR. CURCIO: The newsletter is anybody

         11  who goes on the website and actually registers and

         12  provides their information and asks to get a copy of

         13  the newsletter. A large amount of them are post

         14  commanders and veteran organizations, individuals as

         15  well. But they have to proactively request it.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Again, it is

         17  a proactive request as opposed to a proactive stance

         18  on your part. How many newsletters do you send out?

         19                 MR. CURCIO: In the last newsletter,

         20  we mailed out approximately 2,000 copies.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: At what cost?

         22                 MR. CURCIO: I would have to get back

         23  to you on that. I don't know.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: It can't be

         25  much.
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          2                 MR. CURCIO: Again, I can look into

          3  and certainly get back to you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Because if

          5  you are talking about $260,000 or $100,000, it's not

          6  much. It baffles me and I think it baffles the rest

          7  of this Committee about how we are treating and we

          8  are acting toward people who have done the work of

          9  this country and come back and really have real

         10  needs. We're not doing anything close to what we

         11  should be doing in terms of providing for them. If

         12  we as a Council, if we were able to provide you with

         13  a list of veterans in New York City, would your

         14  agency be able to administer the correspondence?

         15                 MR. CURCIO: I can't answer that

         16  directly. I would have to speak with the Director

         17  and other people in order to answer that. But again,

         18  I don't see how it is practical that you would get

         19  such a listing.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Okay. Maybe

         21  we want to be proactive in getting maybe 80 percent

         22  correct instead of 100 percent. Assuming we did

         23  that, let's just assume hypothetical we could do it

         24  and handed you the list, because you are saying the

         25  biggest problem is not having a list to work with
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          2  other than the cost. Assuming we overcome that

          3  problem and rather through a foil or some other

          4  means, we get at least a working list, would you be

          5  able to handle that correspondence?

          6                 MR. CURCIO: Again, that is something

          7  that I would have to take up with the Director and

          8  get back to you on.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Are you at

         10  least willing to say that corresponding with as many

         11  veterans as you possibly can in New York City is a

         12  goal that we should all be working toward?

         13                 MR. CURCIO: I think we do a number of

         14  different methods of outreach. To the best of my

         15  knowledge, no City agency is compelled to reach out

         16  to every potential person out there who might be

         17  able to take advantage of benefits that are

         18  available.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: We're not

         20  talking about compelling or mandatory, we're talking

         21  about doing what we think is right for veterans and

         22  what we think is right for veterans is that they be

         23  made aware of what they are eligible for.

         24                 MR. CURCIO: I think we all want to do

         25  what is right for veterans, but I think the way you
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          2  go about it, what you are proposing, just doesn't

          3  seem to be practical from a standpoint.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Are you

          5  saying that you cannot even obtain a list of current

          6  veterans that have served within the last five to

          7  ten years? You cannot even obtain a list of those

          8  veterans?

          9                 MR. CURCIO: We don't have such a

         10  list. And the entire purpose of our agency is to

         11  serve as a liaison agency. We are not a direct

         12  provider of benefits or an accredited veterans

         13  service organization. We are a liaison agency and

         14  that's what we do.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: You work for

         16  the City of New York. Can you find out at least how

         17  many veterans are employees of the City of New York?

         18                 MR. CURCIO: There are approximately

         19  2,200 from the Payroll Administration.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: So you know

         21  that?

         22                 MR. CURCIO: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Okay.

         24                 MR. CURCIO: City employees are

         25  maintained in a clear database by the Office of
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          2  Payroll Administration.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: You have that

          4  to start with?

          5                 MR. CURCIO: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: You have

          7  that. Now have you done any outreach to those 2,200?

          8                 MR. CURCIO: Not directly in the

          9  format you are proposing as far as a mailing or

         10  anything of that sort.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: What sort

         12  have you done?

         13                 MR. CURCIO: Through the various

         14  methods I mentioned before.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Which is not

         16  a proactive outreach.

         17                 MR. CURCIO: If you are a City

         18  employee, I would think you would know that the City

         19  maintains a website, nyc.gov, and you would access

         20  all the different agencies and our agency is

         21  included there.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: I don't know

         23  if that is a correct conclusion or at least

         24  assumption, but we will leave it at the answer that

         25  we haven't done anything with the 2,200. Right now,
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          2  other than those people who register on the website,

          3  MOVA does not send correspondence to veterans or

          4  veterans groups? Am I correct?

          5                 MR. CURCIO: We send correspondence to

          6  veterans groups. You are talking about different

          7  chapters of different veterans organizations, we do

          8  do that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: And you have

         10  a current listing of veterans groups throughout the

         11  five boroughs?

         12                 MR. CURCIO: Yes, we request that from

         13  the different veterans groups periodically.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: What do you

         15  send to those groups?

         16                 MR. CURCIO: The newsletter.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: The

         18  newsletter?

         19                 MR. CURCIO: The Mayor's Office of

         20  Veterans' Affairs newsletter and one just went out

         21  actually a couple of weeks ago right before Memorial

         22  Day.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: How many

         24  veterans groups do you have on that registry?

         25                 MR. CURCIO: More than 400.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Throughout

          3  the five boroughs.

          4                 MR. CURCIO: That includes a chapter

          5  is a different organizations, but correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: It seems to

          7  me and I don't want to belabor the point, but it

          8  seems to me Mr. Chairman, that the basic tools are

          9  there if they want to put them together and use

         10  them. It may not be one source, it may be several

         11  sources. But the basic tools are there to accomplish

         12  the goal of what this bill attempts to do.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you,

         14  Council Member Gentile. I have a couple of follow-

         15  up questions. If someone goes to your website and

         16  they register, they are on your database, how do you

         17  communicate? Well, first of all, do you ever

         18  communicate with them once they register?

         19                 MR. CURCIO: Well, if they are asking

         20  a specific question, then we would respond directly

         21  to that. If it is just a matter of asking to join

         22  the mailing list, then they would be put on the

         23  mailing list and they will get the newsletter as it

         24  goes out.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: When does the
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          2  newsletter go out?

          3                 MR. CURCIO: It has gone out at least

          4  twice a year in the last couple of years; around

          5  Veterans Day and around Memorial Day.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: It goes out

          7  twice a year.

          8                 MR. CURCIO: That's been the case this

          9  year and last year.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: So the last

         11  two years, forget out prior to that, and I don't

         12  want to know the answer to that, but at least this

         13  year and last year, it has gone out twice.

         14                 MR. CURCIO: Correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay. How

         16  many pieces of mail did you mail out?

         17                 MR. CURCIO: We mailed approximately

         18  2,200 hard copies of the newsletter out. People also

         19  receive it electronically.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Right. Well,

         21  I didn't know that because you just said that if you

         22  registered, you are put on the mailing list. So I

         23  want to know about who is getting a piece of mail.

         24  You are saying that you mailed out approximately

         25  2,200 piece of mail for that newsletter.
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          2                 MR. CURCIO: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: You also

          4  testified that there is approximately 2,200 City

          5  employees that are veterans. That's seems to me a

          6  very small number. I don't know how --

          7                 MR. CURCIO: I can tell you that list

          8  has grown by about a 1,000 in the last year in terms

          9  of people who have asked to join the mailing list.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: I'm talking

         11  about City employees that are veterans. Is that

         12  including reservists who are still on active, who

         13  are active in the City agencies?

         14                 MR. CURCIO: Yes

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: So there is a

         16  total of 2,200 veterans and reservists?

         17                 MR. CURCIO: That according to the

         18  Office of Payroll Administration the last time I

         19  checked.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: I definitely

         21  would like to review that one. I don't think that

         22  one is correct. I would imagine that there is a

         23  substantial amount of veterans just in the uniform

         24  agencies. I can imagine in the civilian agencies,

         25  there has to be a lot more than that. Council Member
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          2  Tony Avella.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Chair. Mr. Curcio, what I am about to say has

          5  nothing to do with you personally. I respect the

          6  fact that you are here testifying on behalf of the

          7  Administration. But I got to tell you, how long have

          8  I sat on this Committee, Mr. Chair, and it turns my

          9  stomach to listen to the nonsense that the

         10  Administration comes up with each and every time

         11  when it comes to veterans benefits. I would have

         12  appreciated if you just came and said listen, we're

         13  not going to do this. We are going to tell you

         14  honestly, we are not going to do this. Instead of

         15  coming up with the most lamest answers as to why it

         16  can't be done. A $100,000 as my colleague said,

         17  that's nothing. That is nothing to the scheme of a

         18  $50 billion budget. Yes, maybe it is more than what

         19  you are getting from the City for MOVA, but that's

         20  another disgrace. You mentioned that when people

         21  call 311 and anybody who wants veterans benefits and

         22  then they are referred to MOVA, how many people do

         23  you have in your office?

         24                 MR. CURCIO: Three.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Three.
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          2  Clarice, you and somebody else, I guess.

          3                 MR. CURCIO: Correct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: How could you

          5  possibly handle calls from 258,000 people if they

          6  knew benefits were out there? You can't. Obviously,

          7  they don't know that benefits are out there. If they

          8  did, they all would be calling because they all have

          9  problems. I can't imagine that you are being able to

         10  handle a workload like that with three people. It is

         11  just impossible. You mentioned about the database

         12  that you have of groups calling up for the

         13  newsletter and you routinely send it out I actually

         14  had the opportunity to call your office and ask for

         15  a copy of that database because I have some pieces

         16  of legislation, veterans legislation, and I wanted

         17  to reach the veterans groups.

         18                 I have to say first of all, your

         19  office gave me a hard time. They didn't want to give

         20  it out because people's names were on it. Then when

         21  I threatened to foil, you sort of agreed. Well, if

         22  we take the president's name off, as long as we have

         23  the head of the address of the organization, we'll

         24  give it to you. So, I finally got it. I did a

         25  mailing. How often do you update your database?
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          2                 MR. CURCIO: We reach out to the

          3  various organizations. We ask for a post list and

          4  what have you. But again, it relies upon them giving

          5  us the information as well. I can tell you that we

          6  have over 20 veterans organizations at Veterans

          7  Memorial Hall and periodically we do ask them for an

          8  updated list of post commanders and capture list.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: I've got to

         10  tell you that I find it extremely hard to believe.

         11  Because I got 30 to 50 out of your mailing back

         12  saying wrong address, no longer here. In fact, the

         13  widow of a veteran actually called my office and

         14  said, her husband had passed away like five years

         15  ago. Why is she still getting this mail? I can't

         16  believe she just choose to call me and not your

         17  office if you are doing these newsletter. Somebody

         18  is clearly not following up. You have these

         19  addresses and you just send out and I think that's

         20  all you do. By the way, I had my office call your

         21  office with all those addresses that came back, did

         22  anybody follow up to even know that my office called

         23  and gave you the follow up addresses?

         24                 MR. CURCIO: I'm aware of that. If

         25  mail gets returned, certainly if it went to the

                                                            38

          1  COMMITTEE ON VETERANS

          2  wrong address, it gets returned, then we look into

          3  it and try to correct it as best we can reaching out

          4  to the various organizations.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Well,

          6  obviously you didn't because why would there be such

          7  a large number --

          8                 MR. CURCIO: We can only --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: -- And why

         10  would that person whose husband passed away four or

         11  five years still be on the list? Again, I don't

         12  think she would have just called me and not your

         13  office because she complained, why am I getting

         14  these things for years. Clearly, there is a

         15  disconnect from what you are saying and what your

         16  office actually does. It just boggles the mind here

         17  and I'm sure echoing my colleagues feelings. This is

         18  a disgrace. This is a disgrace. And I know it is not

         19  you personally, but when the heck is this

         20  Administration going to stand up and do something

         21  for the veterans of the City. I mean, really.

         22                 We are talking about $100,000. We are

         23  talking the database which you should find out

         24  anyway. I mean that would make good common sense.

         25  Why the heck don't we just send the mailing to every

                                                            39

          1  COMMITTEE ON VETERANS

          2  citizen in this City who gets a tax bill and put it

          3  on there, are you a veteran? If you are a veteran,

          4  call us. If you are a veteran, here are the programs

          5  that you can apply for. Why do you have the audacity

          6  representing the Administration, and again it is not

          7  you, it is the Administration, saying we can't do

          8  this. You should be saying, we're going to find

          9  every way possible to do this instead of coming up

         10  with all these reasons we can't do it.

         11                 MR. CURCIO: I would respect --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: I'm not

         13  finished.

         14                 MR. CURCIO: Go ahead.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: We are the

         16  biggest City in the world. We can do whatever we

         17  want when we have the political will to do it. You

         18  know something, I don't even expect an answer. Just

         19  do it. Just really do it and take it back to the

         20  Mayor for once. You know, I walked with the Mayor in

         21  how many Memorial Day parades. I almost felt like

         22  embarrassing him in front of these communities

         23  saying like, you walk, you wave, but why aren't we

         24  doing something. Because it really is ridiculous.

         25                 MR. CURCIO: I would respectfully
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          2  suggest that we are doing a number of things that

          3  Access nyc. Accomplishes many points you just

          4  brought up.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: We disagree.

          6                 MR. CURCIO: So it would seem.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: So does the

          8  Chair strongly disagree. That's why we are pushing

          9  for an initiative and that's why we are trying to

         10  get your office to do more and we would like the

         11  Mayor to fund the office more and expand it and do

         12  more services than just coordinate the parade. I

         13  don't think we have anymore questions. Right? Thank

         14  you.

         15                 MR. CURCIO: You're welcome.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Mr.

         17  Weisbroth, can you please come up?

         18                 MR. WEISBROTH: I have no prepared

         19  notes. Good afternoon, Councilman Monserrate and

         20  others. Thanks for the opportunity to come here and

         21  say a few words on behalf of notifying the public.

         22  First of all, with regard to your comments about the

         23  Veterans' Administration knowing about you, having

         24  worked for the VA for 32 years from 1968 to 2001 --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Just before
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          2  you go forward, we need you to say your name, your

          3  title and the agency you are representing.

          4                 MR. WEISBROTH: Ben Weisbroth, Deputy

          5  Director, New York State Division of Veterans'

          6  Affairs, representing the Division and myself as a

          7  New York City Vietnam veteran. Veterans

          8  Administration in 1972 started getting information

          9  from the Department of Defense on everybody that has

         10  been discharged. That would include your name, your

         11  social security number, your service number, quality

         12  of your service. It did not get your address. While

         13  the VA was able to help you because you probably

         14  filed for benefits somewhere down the line and a

         15  copy of your DD214 was located at the regional

         16  office, I assume that's how you got yours.

         17                 The alternative would have been a

         18  statement of service based on the service data that

         19  the VA had. Anyone that served prior to 1972, the VA

         20  would have gotten the information if that person

         21  filed a claim for benefits and submitted a DD214 or

         22  we went to the service department at that time to

         23  get the information on your claim.

         24                 Now I'm not here to say whether you

         25  are right or they are right, but I've had some
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          2  practical experiences on this with the years I

          3  worked at the VA. In 1996, you may have remembered

          4  the VA moved from 24th Street down to Varick Street.

          5  I mailed out over 100,000 letters to everyone who

          6  had a claim or a pending claim. We got between 15

          7  and 20 percent back.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Who was that

          9  mailed too?

         10                 MR. WEISBROTH: Every veteran who had

         11  an active claim or a pending claim in New York State

         12  from the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs. You

         13  know, how when you move --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: What year was

         15  that?

         16                 MR. WEISBROTH: 1996.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: In 1996,

         18  there was some database somewhere --

         19                 MR. WEISBROTH: Oh, there is a

         20  database.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: -- That had

         22  100,000 New York State residents.

         23                 MR. WEISBROTH: Oh, yes, it has got

         24  more than that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay. I'm
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          2  sure it is somewhat updated since 1996.

          3                 MR. WEISBROTH: Absolutely.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: If the City

          5  of New York requested that list, an agency, would

          6  that list be available to them?

          7                 MR. WEISBROTH: The list, no. But they

          8  would prepare a computer disk that would have

          9  mailing labels on it because all they would be

         10  asking for is the name and address of all of these

         11  veterans. Now keep in mind, in '96, 11 years ago,

         12  prior to the big push for direct deposit, I got

         13  between 15 and 20 percent of them back as

         14  nondeliverable. Like any other veteran, I got the

         15  check. I didn't care necessarily about updating my

         16  address if I moved, as long as the check kept

         17  coming, that was fine. The office could make a foil

         18  request --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Which office

         20  would this FOIL'er request go to?

         21                 MR. WEISBROTH: It would go to the

         22  U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Which is

         24  located in Washington?

         25                 MR. WEISBROTH: Well, they could write
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          2  it to the regional office Director asking for their

          3  assistance in getting a list of all those veterans

          4  located within the zip codes of New York City.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: This

          6  Committee is going to make that official request.

          7                 MR. WEISBROTH: That's fine. But let

          8  me continue.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Yes.

         10                 MR. WEISBROTH: There is a better way

         11  to do this.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: I'm all ears.

         13                 MR. WEISBROTH: The New York City

         14  Harbor Healthcare folks got Con Edison to put in a

         15  notice --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: In the New

         17  York City Harbor what?

         18                 MR. WEISBROTH: Healthcare. All the VA

         19  medical centers in Manhattan and Brooklyn a while

         20  back did an outreach activity. And Con Ed was good

         21  enough to put a notice in their bills. Just like

         22  everybody is suppose to pay taxes, everybody is

         23  suppose to pay their electric bill. I would suggest

         24  to both you and to the folks at the Mayor's office

         25  that you contact Con Ed and see if they would be
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          2  willing to put a notice in one of their bills once a

          3  year as to the availability of knowledge and

          4  information that could be garnered from the Mayor's

          5  Office of Veterans' Affairs and do it that way.

          6                 Additionally, the Harbor Healthcare

          7  network, again the Manhattan, Brooklyn and the Bronx

          8  people for that matter too, send out newsletters to

          9  their clients. I prevail upon them to let the

         10  Mayor's office put something out. I see my friend,

         11  Joe Bello back there. Joe has a computer letter that

         12  he sends out. Prevail upon Joe to do it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: I get Joe's

         14  letter by the way.

         15                 MR. WEISBROTH: And so do I.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: I don't think

         17  I get MOVA's, but I get Joe's.

         18                 MR. WEISBROTH: I get Joe and I also

         19  get MOVA's. Let me just go a little further. One

         20  thing that New York State does and I'll give us a

         21  little advertisement is we get a copy of every DD214

         22  for every active duty, reservist and guardsman that

         23  wants a copy of it sent to their home state. And for

         24  all the New Yorkers that come back, we send them a

         25  letter welcoming them back from the Governor and we
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          2  include the addresses of every veteran service

          3  agency --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Let me

          5  interject here. If the Governor does that today,

          6  Governor Spitzer, formerly Pataki --

          7                 MR. WEISBROTH: Correct.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: So the

          9  Governor of the State of New York can mail this

         10  letter --

         11                 MR. WEISBROTH: Absolutely and he

         12  does.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Would you

         14  agree that it is probably not too far fetch that the

         15  Mayor of the City of New York, via MOVA, can also

         16  send a similar letter to New York City veterans?

         17                 MR. WEISBROTH: He could if he had

         18  their names. But we can't share that information

         19  with him.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: You can't?

         21                 MR. WEISBROTH: No, we can't.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: But the Feds

         23  can? Someone can.

         24                 MR. WEISBROTH: Someone in the

         25  Department of Defense would have to be reached and
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          2  get a Memorandum of Understanding. I don't know when

          3  you got out, but I got out in the late 60's when

          4  every insurance agent --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: 1990 for the

          6  record.

          7                 MR. WEISBROTH: Okay, you are just a

          8  kid. Anyway, there was a lot of abuse right after

          9  and during the Vietnam War where you get home and

         10  you get a call welcoming you home having gotten the

         11  name and address from the Department of Defense.

         12  That was when the government finally started

         13  cracking down and with the privacy act, you have to

         14  come up with a reason for asking for this

         15  information and if it is deemed valid, I would

         16  assume that the Mayor's Office could get it. I would

         17  just like to add though that in order to work with

         18  our friends in the City, we have a blurb in about

         19  CUNY enrollment for veterans and we also list the

         20  Mayor's Office of Veterans' Affairs along with the

         21  other State and county offices. I mean we try and

         22  share. But if the letter gets too big, it gets

         23  tossed. It never gets looked at.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: And we as

         25  elected officials know a little bit about that.
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          2                 MR. WEISBROTH: I know you do. Again,

          3  I would like to suggest that you suggest to the

          4  Mayor's Office that you explore Con Ed and the

          5  Harbor Healthcare before you get into sending

          6  letters out to phantom addresses. I mean, you can do

          7  both if you want. But maybe explore the possibility

          8  of Con Ed and the Harbor Healthcare first and Joe

          9  Bello and maybe the United War Veterans also.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay. Let me

         11  see if I have questions from my colleagues.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Mr. Chairman,

         13  you said earlier as you began your testimony that a

         14  foil can be sent to the U.S. Office of Veterans

         15  Affairs and they would produce labels.

         16                 MR. WEISBROTH: They would present you

         17  with probably with a tape that you could use to

         18  print labels.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: And that tape

         20  would be names of veterans --

         21                 MR. WEISBROTH: Names and addresses

         22  solely.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Names and

         24  addresses of veterans based on zip codes.

         25                 MR. WEISBROTH: Yes, if I may. You
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          2  would have to give them the parameters that you

          3  want. My suggestion would be everyone receiving

          4  benefits in the New York City area or has a pending

          5  claim for benefits, and you would list 10001 to I

          6  guess, 11199 and that would be the parameters. The

          7  VA, once or twice every month goes in and runs those

          8  programs where they are asked for information.

          9  Naturally, their highest priority is getting checks

         10  out. But they have down cycles where they give out

         11  put. The request would be made to the Director of

         12  the New York Regional Office. She would then forward

         13  it to the VA Central Office in Washington to the

         14  data people and probably the regional council to

         15  make sure it was kosher and then if it was approved,

         16  they would print it for you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: But the foil

         18  would go to the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs.

         19                 MR. WEISBROTH: Yes, it is their

         20  record.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: And it would

         22  be record of those veterans who have claims or who

         23  have had claims.

         24                 MR. WEISBROTH: Or who have pending

         25  claims.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Pending

          3  claims.

          4                 MR. WEISBROTH: Once a month, the VA

          5  pays everybody in the system on what they call a

          6  zero cycle and then periodically they update it. And

          7  before a claim goes in, they put it in a pending

          8  work file and so the addresses are there as well as

          9  the claims that are getting benefits. Those are the

         10  two databases that you would want to access.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Mr. Chairman,

         12  this is exactly the foil request we asked Director

         13  Joynes to make and she said to us last time that she

         14  would be able to do so. We asked her that in a

         15  letter that you and I both signed on March 2, 2007.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: And she never

         17  responded too.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: And she never

         19  responded too. The fact is that we asked her that we

         20  formerly requested you file the appropriate foil

         21  with the respected departments to obtain the

         22  compiled list. No response. Even after having

         23  testified she was able to do it and so here we are

         24  almost in June after having gone through this in

         25  March and still have gotten no where in terms of the
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          2  foil.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: And clearly,

          4  we understand that this is something that is doable.

          5  I don't know if Mr. Curcio wants to come back up and

          6  respond to that. Are you interested in responding to

          7  that, Mr. Curcio? Okay. I didn't think so. Mr.

          8  Weisbroth, I just want to say thank you for your

          9  work and your testimony just reaffirms what we

         10  already knew and we appreciate your participation

         11  today and doing your part to be helpful to veterans.

         12  As a fellow veteran, I want to say thank you.

         13                 MR. WEISBROTH: Okay. Can I just make

         14  one comment?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Absolutely.

         16                 MR. WEISBROTH: I worked with the

         17  Mayor's office for better than 20 years. As conduits

         18  between the clients and us, both when I worked for

         19  the VA and New York State, they have done a good

         20  job. They call. They follow up. They nudge when I

         21  promise to do something and it takes a little bit

         22  longer. They do get back to me. Notifying every

         23  veteran in New York State --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Let me

         25  interject for a moment. What is your agency?
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          2                 MR. WEISBROTH: New York State

          3  Division of Veterans Affairs, but I work for the VA

          4  for 32 years.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: But you work

          6  for the State right now?

          7                 MR. WEISBROTH: Yes, I do.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: You work for

          9  the State's Veterans agency?

         10                 MR. WEISBROTH: I'm the Deputy

         11  Director for the 31 eastern counties.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: How many

         13  employees does your agency have?

         14                 MR. WEISBROTH: Well, in New York City

         15  I have --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Just give me

         17  the State.

         18                 MR. WEISBROTH: About 102.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: You have 102.

         20  What is your budget?

         21                 MR. WEISBROTH: I can't give you that

         22  number off hand.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Roughly, ball

         24  park. I'm not going to hold you to the exact --

         25                 MR. WEISBROTH: $14 to $16 million
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          2  probably.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay. That's

          4  my point. There is only so good an agency can be

          5  when they are running on a $180,000 budget and have

          6  three to four employees. Your agency can do more

          7  because there are more resources.

          8                 MR. WEISBROTH: Absolutely.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: And you can't

         10  do more without resources.

         11                 MR. WEISBROTH: I agree.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: And what this

         13  Committee and the members have attempted to do is to

         14  get the Mayor of the City of New York and this

         15  agency to actually do something that lay a wreath

         16  and have a website. I'm not directing that to you.

         17  They know who I am directing it too. Two of them are

         18  in the room. With all due respect to your comments,

         19  I know you have a good working professional

         20  relationship with them and I can appreciate that,

         21  but the mere comparison of the fact that the State

         22  of New York has an office that spends $14 to $16

         23  million on their vets, a large proportion of that

         24  population living in the five boroughs, but our City

         25  spends $180, $190 which is actually City dollars. It
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          2  is really not directed towards you.

          3                 MR. WEISBROTH: I understand.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: And I respect

          5  your statement. If you want to add something, you

          6  can. If not, I want to just say thank you again.

          7                 MR. WEISBROTH: You are very welcome.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you.

          9  I'm going to call up some of the voices of reasons

         10  for our Veterans Committee. Dan Rossi, Ralph DiToro

         11  and Joe Bello to please come up to the panel. And I

         12  invite the Mayor's Office and MOVA to stay and

         13  listen to their testimony. Please gentlemen, give

         14  your name, the organization you are representing and

         15  proceed with your testimony.

         16                 MR. DITORO: My name is Ralph DiToro.

         17  I am with the organization called COVA and I'm also

         18  with the organization called Sailor/Veteran Vendors

         19  Action Committee. I'd like to begin by making a few

         20  comments about this proposed bill, 508- A which I

         21  think is very, very good and should be put through.

         22  When we served our country, we served our country,

         23  we served our State and we served our City. There is

         24  no reason why the redundancy is harmful for

         25  veterans. As a matter, you need redundancy because
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          2  of the way veterans are in general; suffering from

          3  tremendous amounts of post- traumatic stress, the

          4  way they live their lives. They are one of the

          5  largest population of drug abuse and alcoholism.

          6                 The guys that fall through the

          7  cracks, maybe you can catch some on the bottom

          8  somewhere along the line. So this notion of, well

          9  the Federal does it and the City does it. The City

         10  doesn't really have to do it because we can't get a

         11  database. And when I first came to speak in front of

         12  this Committee two years ago, the first thing I said

         13  was to establish a database and nothing has been

         14  done. When we talk about MOVA, not every veteran has

         15  a computer. Not every veteran has a computer. How

         16  are they going to receive or know what MOVA says.

         17                 In the gentlemen's testimony, he said

         18  immediately when you call 311 you are transferred.

         19  That's not so. That is not so. When you can 311, you

         20  are asked a bunch of questions about what you are

         21  looking for and they might give you an answer. If

         22  they can't, they will refer you. When you get back

         23  down to the MOVA site to begin with, I just

         24  downloaded MOVA's website. I just like to point out

         25  a few things that I find very disingenuous and does
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          2  not help veterans at all.

          3                 Number one, is the fact you come

          4  across a section here called Volunteer

          5  Opportunities. When you click on Volunteer

          6  Opportunities, you would think that they would be

          7  talking veterans volunteering to help the vets or go

          8  to the hospital to help the veterans or something.

          9  It has nothing to do whatsoever with the veterans.

         10  It has everything else to do with different -- I'm

         11  not saying they are not good. But there is nothing

         12  here that is for the veteran. And then you go and

         13  click on funding opportunities and then you think,

         14  oh man, maybe they are going to have a funding drive

         15  for cars. I know in the past, I have sent money to

         16  Operation AC which is Operation Air Conditioner for

         17  air conditioning, food, whatever the guys need; the

         18  care packages. But when you look at this fund

         19  raiser, again, not one thing for the veterans. There

         20  is a not a dollar to say, fund raising, maybe we

         21  will have some care package fund raiser for the

         22  veterans. That's down the tubes.

         23                 I would like to ask the gentlemen a

         24  question, if I may. When you send in a request on an

         25  e- mail, when you e- mail in a question, how long
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          2  does it usually take before you get a response from

          3  MOVA.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: You can't ask

          5  him because he is done.

          6                 MR. DITORO: I'm sorry.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Leave the

          8  question on the record.

          9                 MR. DITORO: Leave the question on the

         10  record. I'd like in the future you would find out

         11  how long it takes before the veteran gets a response

         12  for a request that he put in through the e- mail

         13  system. You will be staggered by the time it takes

         14  if they answer at all. If you call and get through

         15  to their office and I call and specifically ask

         16  about the veterans tax breaks and I said are there

         17  any different levels of tax breaks for veterans. And

         18  I was told no. Well, there is.

         19                 I told the young lady and she said,

         20  wait I will get the information for you. I said, no,

         21  no, no. You get one shot at this and that's the shot

         22  and you missed it. I dispersed with the

         23  conversation. Other than that, this MOVA website

         24  says they are the liaison. When was the last time --

         25  I never heard of MOVA having a meeting -- if they
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          2  have a meeting with the Mayor, what do they talk

          3  about? Is there anybody in MOVA that wants to help

          4  the veterans? Is there anybody in this

          5  Administration? Truman said, the buck stops here. So

          6  in New York, where does the buck stop? We can't get

          7  a meeting with the Mayor. We can't get a meeting

          8  with Quinn. And then we hear that $100,000 and that

          9  was a slap in the face, is too much money to send

         10  out a newsletter. I find this revolting. That's the

         11  end of my testimony. I thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you

         13  very much. Please proceed.

         14                 MR. ROSSI: Good afternoon. My name is

         15  Dan Rossi. I represent veterans. No groups. I'm

         16  going to be a lot shorter and sweeter than Ralph. I

         17  naturally am in favor of the introduction. But at

         18  the same time, MOVA is the wrong place to give the

         19  money too or let them do it. MOVA is a waste of

         20  time. It should be dissolved right now. Let's stop

         21  wasting our time with this. I'm sorry, guys. If you

         22  give me $180,000 and I will personally go to every

         23  veteran in this City. You are not doing the job. All

         24  you are is a PR friend for the Mayor.

         25                 A few years ago, Giuliani tried to
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          2  dissolve MOVA because it did absolutely nothing. But

          3  then they went back to them and said, listen you

          4  have to got to show that you are doing something, so

          5  they kept it. It is a waste of time. Take the money,

          6  throw it into our outreach centers into each borough

          7  and let's get something done. That's about it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you.

          9  Mr. Bello.

         10                 MR. BELLO: Good afternoon. Thank you

         11  for having me once again. Joe Bello. I am currently

         12  the new Chair of the CUNY Veterans Steering

         13  Committee. I also work at the Community College at

         14  the Veterans Office. I support Intro 508. Before I

         15  start, I just want to say on a personal note,

         16  nothing personal, I just thought your coming was

         17  kind of tactic. I thought Ms. Joynes should have

         18  been here for this particularly to follow up.

         19  Because now I question how long before Mr. Curcio

         20  gets back to Ms. Joynes who gets back to you guys

         21  (if she hasn't gotten back to you before).

         22                 I find it sad also that we are

         23  creating more legislation to get MOVA to do its job.

         24  That's on top of the Veterans Advisory Board.

         25  According to the State law, MOVA is mandated to
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          2  inform members of the armed forces about these

          3  things. They don't do it. MOVA has not done any

          4  outreach. I have said it before, I have said it

          5  again, an event does not count. Marching in a parade

          6  does not count. But while I support 508, I also

          7  recognize the fact, they only have three members in

          8  the office If we remember from the last oversight

          9  hearing, two of them are supposedly at a 100 Gold

         10  Street. So what do we have, one at 346 and two at

         11  100 Gold or vice versa. There is hardly any ops

         12  money.

         13                 If I remember correctly, the last

         14  mail out that was done was through the Department of

         15  Finance. This is MOVA that has consistently stated

         16  in its testimony that they do not need or require

         17  any additional monies while stating that any

         18  projects would be hard because of the limited

         19  manpower. It is like this catch 22 that we are going

         20  through right now.

         21                 I remember a time where there was

         22  some sort of database through MOVA when Mike Handy

         23  was the Director. In fact, that database was the

         24  basis upon which Gifford Miller was the Speaker that

         25  they were able to put together a veterans event over
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          2  here.  That's about it. I support it. Like I said, I

          3  just have some real questions about how this is

          4  going to be put out with them continuing to say that

          5  they have limited resources.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: I want to

          7  thank the three of you for your testimony today. I

          8  don't think there is anyone testifying. Again, for

          9  the record, we have already made several requests to

         10  MOVA. We have reiterated those requests. We put

         11  those requests in writing. We will be preparing

         12  something else in writing again and hopefully MOVA

         13  will decide to respond. Thank you very much for

         14  attending today's hearing. I will call for

         15  adjournment of this hearing today.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 2:30 p.m.)
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